
          

 

SEBASTIAN RIVER 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
JUNE 8, 2022 

9:00 A.M. 
& 

LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 
JUNE 8, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sridfl.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 
AGENDA 

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

Offices of the Indian River County Administration Complex 
Bldg. A, Room A1-102 

1800 27th Street 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
June 8, 2022 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………….…….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Approval of Minutes  

1. April 27, 2022 Special Board Meeting…………………………………………………………….Page 2 

F. Old Business 

G. New Business 

1. Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget…………………Page 6 

H. Administrative Matters 

1. Sand Mine Updates 

2. Financial Update…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 10 

I. Board Members Comments 

J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

K. Adjourn 



������������	�
� 
�����������������������
����������������

����������� !������������������ ��" ���

#$%&'(()*'+,%�-+.$&'%/01234567�38�/9644�:;098<2�;8�=<>�?@A�@B@@CDEFGHDIJ873<8�K3L69�M;08N>A�O2;937<PDGHEQ�RQSGTUVWTXJWY�KJZUK�J=/K[ZU=UYX�\JTXKJMX�Y[XJMU�[O�KU]̂ _WK�V[WK\�=UUXJY]�̀�WYŶ W_�_WY\[aYUKTb�=UUXJY]Y[XJMU�JT�cUKUVd�]JZUY�N5<N�N56�T61<4N3<8�K3L69�Jef9;L6e68N�\34N93gN�hiTKJ\ij�k322�5;27�<�K6l02<9�V;<97�=66N38l�;8�:086mA�@B@@A�<N�noBB�<pep�<N�N56�J873<8�K3L69�M;08N>�W7e3834N9<N3;8�M;ef26qA�V27lp�WA�K;;e�W?r?B@A�?mB?�@sN5�TN966NA�Z69;V6<g5A�O2;937<�t@nuBp�X56�f09f;46�;v�N56�K6l02<9�V;<97�=66N38l�34�N;�g;870gN�<8>�10438644�k53g5�e<>�f9;f692>�g;e616v;96�N56�V;<97p�X56�e66N38l�34�;f68�N;�N56�f0123g�<87�k322�16�g;870gN67�38�<gg;97<8g6�k3N5�N56�f9;L343;84�;v�O2;937<�2<kpW�g;f>�;v�N56�Wl687<�v;9�N56�e66N38l�e<>�16�;1N<3867�v9;e�N56�\34N93gNb4�k6143N6�;9�1>�g;8N<gN38l�N56�\34N93gN�=<8<l69�<Nhwu?j�utBrxn@@�<87y;9�N;22�v966�<N�?rmssrstsrxn@@p�Y[XJMU�JT�cUKUVd�]JZUY�N5<N�TKJ\�k322�5;27�3N4�W880<2�_<87;k8694b=66N38l�;8�:086�?A�@B@@A�<N�?BoBB�<pepA�;9�<4�4;;8�N5696<vN69�<4�g<8�16�56<97A�<N�N56�J873<8�K3L69�M;08N>�W7e3834N9<N3;8M;ef26qA�V27lp�Vr?A�K;;e�wB?A�?mBB�@sN5�TN966NA�Z69;�V6<g5A�O2;937<�t@nuBp�X56�f09f;46�;v�N56�W880<2�_<87;k8694b=66N38l�34�N;�626gN�;86�h?j�T0f69L34;9�N;�N56�TKJ\�V;<97�;v�T0f69L34;94p�X56�W880<2�_<87;k8694b�=66N38l�34�;f68�N;�N56f0123g�<87�k322�16�g;870gN67�38�<gg;97<8g6�k3N5�N56�f9;L343;84�;v�O2;937<�2<kp�W�g;f>�;v�N56�Wl687<�v;9�N56�W880<2_<87;k8694b�=66N38l�e<>�16�;1N<3867�v9;e�N56�\34N93gNb4�k6143N6�;9�1>�g;8N<gN38l�N56�\34N93gN�=<8<l69�<N�hwu?j�utBrxn@@<87y;9�N;22�v966�<N�?rmssrstsrxn@@p�O9;e�N3e6�N;�N3e6�;86�T0f69L34;9�e<>�f<9N3g3f<N6�1>�N626f5;86z�N5696v;96A�<�4f6<{69N626f5;86�k322�16�f96468N�<4�96|03967A�<N�N56�e66N38l�2;g<N3;8�4;�N5<N�T0f69L34;94�e<>�16�v022>�38v;9e67�;v�N56�734g0443;84N<{38l�f2<g6p�T<37�e66N38lh4j�e<>�16�g;8N38067�<4�v;087�86g644<9>�N;�<�N3e6�<87�f2<g6�4f6g3v367�;8�N56�96g;97p�Jv�<8>f694;8�76g3764�N;�<ff6<2�<8>�76g343;8�e<76�k3N5�964f6gN�N;�<8>�e<NN69�g;84376967�<N�N5646�e66N38l4A�40g5�f694;8�k322�8667<�96g;97�;v�N56�f9;g66738l4�<87�40g5�f694;8�e<>�8667�N;�384096�N5<N�<�L691<N3e�96g;97�;v�N56�f9;g66738l4�34�e<76�<N�534�;9569�;k8�6qf6846�<87�k53g5�96g;97�38g20764�N56�N64N3e;8>�<87�6L3768g6�;8�k53g5�N56�<ff6<2�34�1<467p�J8�<gg;97<8g6�k3N5N56�f9;L343;84�;v�N56�We693g<84�k3N5�\34<1323N364�WgNA�<8>�f694;8�96|03938l�4f6g3<2�<gg;ee;7<N3;84�;9�<8�38N69f96N69�N;f<9N3g3f<N6�<N�<8>�;v�N5646�e66N38l4�45;027�g;8N<gN�N56�\34N93gN�=<8<l69�<N�hwu?j�utBrxn@@�<87y;9�N;22�v966�<N�?rmssrstsrxn@@�<N�26<4N�46L68�hsj�7<>4�f93;9�N;�N56�7<N6�;v�N56�f<9N3g02<9�e66N38lp�=66N38l4�e<>�16�g<8g62267�v9;e�N3e6�N;�N3e6k3N5;0N�<7L69N3467�8;N3g6p�TUVWTXJWY�KJZUK�J=/K[ZU=UYX�\JTXKJMX�kkkp461<4N3<893L6937p;9l�/̂V_JTco�JY\JWY�KJZUK/KUTT�:[̂ KYW_�Bwy?@y@@�̀�Bwy?ny@@�XMYw@xnxuB

Page 1



 
 

 

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 27, 2022 
 
 

A. Call to Order  

The April 27, 2022 Special Board Meeting of the Sebastian River Improvement District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 10:08 a.m. in the Indian River County Administration Complex, 
Building B-1, Room 303, 1800 27th Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 
 
B. Proof of Publication  

Proof of publication was presented showing that notice of the Special Board Meeting had been 
published in Indian River Press Journal on April 18, 2022, as legally required. 
 
C. Establish Quorum 

A quorum was established with the following Supervisors present: 
 
Board of Supervisors  

Chairman Shawn Sexton Present 

Supervisor Jeff Bass Present 

Supervisor Tom Hammond Present via phone 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 

District Manager Todd Wodraska Special District Services, Inc. 

District Counsel Dan Harrell Gonano & Harrell 

District Engineer George Simons Carter Associates, Inc. 

 
D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

No additions or deletions to the agenda were offered, however, Mr. Wodraska asked the Board for 
permission to move item H. 2. (Maintenance of Canals) and F.1. (Doug Manson) to the beginning 
of the agenda.  
 
H. New Business 

2.  Maintenance of Canals Proposal 
 
Mr. David Maddox of Premier Citrus offered to evaluate District canals and provide a maintenance 
recommendation to the Board.  After further discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Sexton, 
seconded by Mr. Bass authorizing Premier Citrus to perform a maintenance analysis of the District 
at a cost of $75.00 per hour. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
F. Presentation 

 
1. Doug Manson – Post Lawsuit Discussion   

Page 2



 
 

 

 
Special Counsel Doug Manson led a discussion regarding policy considerations, which may help 
the District avoid future litigation.  General discussion revolved around “regulatory actions” which 
may put the District at legal risk, and how to balance any policy changes with the District’s flood 
protection needs. 
 
E. Approval of Minutes 

 
1. February 2, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Sexton, seconded by Mr. Bass approving the minutes of the February 
2, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. The motion approving the minutes passed 
unanimously. 
 
G. Old Business 

 
1. Update/Discussion on Declaring Right-of-Way Surplus 

 
a. Liberty Park 

 
Mr. Simons noted the Liberty Park project was being modified and the District was not in receipt 
of the most current development details.  Further updates will be provided as they become 
available. 
 

b. Graves Brothers 
 

Mr. Simons acknowledged receipt of the Graves Brothers’ request.  Mr. Sakuma was directed to 
send notice to the applicant of the items necessary to further process the request.  

 
2. Status of 82nd Avenue Repairs 

 
Mr. Simons advised he was still waiting for additional information about the construction details 
for the repairs.  

 
3. Consider Reimbursement to Graves Brothers for Deposit for Water Farm Project 

 
Mr. Bass confirmed the Water Farm Project was not going to move forward.  Staff advised a refund 
of unexpended deposit fees would be returned to the applicant. 

 
4. Consider Ratification of Engineer’s New Contract and Authorize Chairman to 

Execute 
 

After the Board confirmed the District’s attorney had reviewed the contract, a motion was made 
by Mr. Bass, seconded by Mr. Sexton ratifying the Engineer’s new contract and authorizing the 
Chairman to execute same. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
H. New Business 
 

1. Consider Approval of Lateral C Water Control Structure Repair Proposal 
 

Page 3



 
 

 

Mr. Simons explained the need for repairs and discussed the proposal with the Board. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Sexton, seconded by Mr. Bass approving the proposal from R&S 
Metalworks & Co. in the amount of $68,700 for repairs to the Lateral C Water Control Structure. 
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
3. Consider FDOT Offer/Proposal for CR510 

 
The Board was informed the District had received notice of an offer from FDOT.  Mr. Simons 
advised he would need to true-up the offer with the pending survey being generated in compliance 
with the Corrigan litigation. 
 
I. Administrative Matters  

 

1. Announce Landowner Meeting for June 1 8, 2022  
 

Mr. Wodraska announced the Landowners’ Meeting would be held on June 8th, and noted the 
proxy form would be edited to reflect the correct date. Notice of the new date would also be 
published as required by law. 

 
2. Discussion Regarding Meeting Schedule 

 
Mr. Wodraska asked if the Board would consider changing their meeting dates to the 2nd 
Wednesday of each month.  After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Sexton, seconded by Mr. 
Bass moving the 2022 Landowners’ and Annual Meeting to June 8, and setting the remaining 
regular meetings to the 2nd Wednesday of the month.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
3. Sand Mines Update 

 
Mr. Simons informed the Board that all three sand mine renewals were complete.  

 
4. Water Quality Reports 

 
Mr. Simons noted the water quality report for the quarter was included in the meeting package, 
and that the readings were within acceptable range.  
 

5. Financial Update 
 

Mr. Wodraska informed the Board the District was in sound financial shape.  
 
J. Board Member Comments 

 
There were no further Board Member comments.  
 
K. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
L. Adjournment 

 

Page 4



 
 

 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the Special Meeting of the District was 
adjourned at 12:17 p.m.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chairman 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Sebastian River Improvement 
District (“District”) is required by Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, to approve a Proposed Budget 
for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for September 7, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. 
at Indian River County Administration Complex, Building B-1, Room 501, 1800 27th Street, 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2022/2023 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of June, 2022. 
 

 
ATTEST: SEBASTIAN RIVER  
 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 6



    Sebastian River
  Improvement District

     Proposed Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2022/2023

     October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



 Sebastian River
Improvement District

   Financial Report For
May 2022

Page 10



Page 11



 

 

AGENDA 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Offices of the Indian River County Administration Complex 

Bldg. A, Room A1-102 
1800 27th Street 

Vero Beach, Florida 32960 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

June 8, 2022 
10:00 a.m. 

 
 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………Page 13 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Consider Adoption of Election Procedures…………………………………………………….Page 14 

E. Election of Chair for Landowners Meeting 

F. Election of Secretary for Landowners’ Meeting 

G. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 2, 2021 Landowners’ Meeting Minutes……………………………………………...Page 17 

H. Election of Supervisors 

1. Determine Number of Voting Units Represented or Assigned by Proxy…………………Page 20 
2. Nomination of Supervisors 
3. Casting of Ballots………………………………………………………………………….Page 21 
4. Ballot Tabulation and Result 

 

I. Other Business 

1. Receive Treasurer’s Report………………………………………………………………..Page 22 

2. Receive Engineer’s Report………………………………………………………………...Page 23 

J. Landowners’ Comments 

K. Adjourn 

Page 12



������������	�
� 
�����������������������
����������������

����������� !������������������ ��" ���

#$%&'(()*'+,%�-+.$&'%/01234567�38�/9644�:;098<2�;8�=<>�?@A�@B@@CDEFGHDIJ873<8�K3L69�M;08N>A�O2;937<PDGHEQ�RQSGTUVWTXJWY�KJZUK�J=/K[ZU=UYX�\JTXKJMX�Y[XJMU�[O�KU]̂ _WK�V[WK\�=UUXJY]�̀�WYŶ W_�_WY\[aYUKTb�=UUXJY]Y[XJMU�JT�cUKUVd�]JZUY�N5<N�N56�T61<4N3<8�K3L69�Jef9;L6e68N�\34N93gN�hiTKJ\ij�k322�5;27�<�K6l02<9�V;<97�=66N38l�;8�:086mA�@B@@A�<N�noBB�<pep�<N�N56�J873<8�K3L69�M;08N>�W7e3834N9<N3;8�M;ef26qA�V27lp�WA�K;;e�W?r?B@A�?mB?�@sN5�TN966NA�Z69;V6<g5A�O2;937<�t@nuBp�X56�f09f;46�;v�N56�K6l02<9�V;<97�=66N38l�34�N;�g;870gN�<8>�10438644�k53g5�e<>�f9;f692>�g;e616v;96�N56�V;<97p�X56�e66N38l�34�;f68�N;�N56�f0123g�<87�k322�16�g;870gN67�38�<gg;97<8g6�k3N5�N56�f9;L343;84�;v�O2;937<�2<kpW�g;f>�;v�N56�Wl687<�v;9�N56�e66N38l�e<>�16�;1N<3867�v9;e�N56�\34N93gNb4�k6143N6�;9�1>�g;8N<gN38l�N56�\34N93gN�=<8<l69�<Nhwu?j�utBrxn@@�<87y;9�N;22�v966�<N�?rmssrstsrxn@@p�Y[XJMU�JT�cUKUVd�]JZUY�N5<N�TKJ\�k322�5;27�3N4�W880<2�_<87;k8694b=66N38l�;8�:086�?A�@B@@A�<N�?BoBB�<pepA�;9�<4�4;;8�N5696<vN69�<4�g<8�16�56<97A�<N�N56�J873<8�K3L69�M;08N>�W7e3834N9<N3;8M;ef26qA�V27lp�Vr?A�K;;e�wB?A�?mBB�@sN5�TN966NA�Z69;�V6<g5A�O2;937<�t@nuBp�X56�f09f;46�;v�N56�W880<2�_<87;k8694b=66N38l�34�N;�626gN�;86�h?j�T0f69L34;9�N;�N56�TKJ\�V;<97�;v�T0f69L34;94p�X56�W880<2�_<87;k8694b�=66N38l�34�;f68�N;�N56f0123g�<87�k322�16�g;870gN67�38�<gg;97<8g6�k3N5�N56�f9;L343;84�;v�O2;937<�2<kp�W�g;f>�;v�N56�Wl687<�v;9�N56�W880<2_<87;k8694b�=66N38l�e<>�16�;1N<3867�v9;e�N56�\34N93gNb4�k6143N6�;9�1>�g;8N<gN38l�N56�\34N93gN�=<8<l69�<N�hwu?j�utBrxn@@<87y;9�N;22�v966�<N�?rmssrstsrxn@@p�O9;e�N3e6�N;�N3e6�;86�T0f69L34;9�e<>�f<9N3g3f<N6�1>�N626f5;86z�N5696v;96A�<�4f6<{69N626f5;86�k322�16�f96468N�<4�96|03967A�<N�N56�e66N38l�2;g<N3;8�4;�N5<N�T0f69L34;94�e<>�16�v022>�38v;9e67�;v�N56�734g0443;84N<{38l�f2<g6p�T<37�e66N38lh4j�e<>�16�g;8N38067�<4�v;087�86g644<9>�N;�<�N3e6�<87�f2<g6�4f6g3v367�;8�N56�96g;97p�Jv�<8>f694;8�76g3764�N;�<ff6<2�<8>�76g343;8�e<76�k3N5�964f6gN�N;�<8>�e<NN69�g;84376967�<N�N5646�e66N38l4A�40g5�f694;8�k322�8667<�96g;97�;v�N56�f9;g66738l4�<87�40g5�f694;8�e<>�8667�N;�384096�N5<N�<�L691<N3e�96g;97�;v�N56�f9;g66738l4�34�e<76�<N�534�;9569�;k8�6qf6846�<87�k53g5�96g;97�38g20764�N56�N64N3e;8>�<87�6L3768g6�;8�k53g5�N56�<ff6<2�34�1<467p�J8�<gg;97<8g6�k3N5N56�f9;L343;84�;v�N56�We693g<84�k3N5�\34<1323N364�WgNA�<8>�f694;8�96|03938l�4f6g3<2�<gg;ee;7<N3;84�;9�<8�38N69f96N69�N;f<9N3g3f<N6�<N�<8>�;v�N5646�e66N38l4�45;027�g;8N<gN�N56�\34N93gN�=<8<l69�<N�hwu?j�utBrxn@@�<87y;9�N;22�v966�<N�?rmssrstsrxn@@�<N�26<4N�46L68�hsj�7<>4�f93;9�N;�N56�7<N6�;v�N56�f<9N3g02<9�e66N38lp�=66N38l4�e<>�16�g<8g62267�v9;e�N3e6�N;�N3e6k3N5;0N�<7L69N3467�8;N3g6p�TUVWTXJWY�KJZUK�J=/K[ZU=UYX�\JTXKJMX�kkkp461<4N3<893L6937p;9l�/̂V_JTco�JY\JWY�KJZUK/KUTT�:[̂ KYW_�Bwy?@y@@�̀�Bwy?ny@@�XMYw@xnxuB

Page 13



 

 

 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 

1. Landowners’ Meeting 

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2007-309, Laws of Florida, and applicable provisions 
of Chapter 298, it is required that an annual meeting of the Landowners of the District be held in 
June of each year for the purpose of electing a supervisor. To take the place of the retiring 
supervisor and hearing reports of the board of supervisors. The assembled Landowners shall 
organize by electing a Chairperson, who shall preside over the meeting; and a Secretary shall also 
be elected for recording purposes. 
  
2. Establishment of Quorum 

Any Landowner(s) present or voting by proxy shall constitute a quorum at the meeting of the 
Landowners. 
 
3. Nomination of Candidates 

At the meeting, the Chairperson shall call for nominations from the floor for Candidates for the 
Board of Supervisors. When there are no further nominations, the Chairperson shall close the floor 
for nominations. The names of each Candidate and the spelling of their names shall be announced. 
Nominees need not be present to be nominated. 
 
4. Voting 

Each Landowner shall be entitled to cast one vote for each acre (or lot parcel), or any fraction 
thereof, of land owned by him or her in the District, for each open position on the Board. (For 
example, if there are three positions open, an owner of one acre or less (or one lot parcel) may cast 
one vote for each of the three positions. An owner of two acres (or two lot parcels) may cast two 
votes for each of the three positions.) Each Landowner shall be entitled to vote either in person or 
by a representative present with a lawful written proxy. 
 
5. Registration for Casting Ballots 

The registration process for the casting of ballots by Landowners or their representatives holding 
their proxies shall be as follows:  
 

a) At the Landowners’ Meeting and prior to the commencement of the first casting of ballots 
for a Board of Supervisor position, each Landowner, or their representative if proxies are 
being submitted in lieu thereof, shall be directed to register their attendance and the total 
number of votes by acreage (or lot parcels) to which each claims to be entitled, with the 
elected Secretary of the meeting or the District’s Manager. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



b) At such registration, each Landowner, or their representative with a lawful proxy, shall be 
provided a numbered ballot for the Board of Supervisor position(s) open for election.  A 
District representative will mark on the ballot the number of votes that such Landowner, 
or their representative, is registered to cast for each Board of Supervisor position open for 
election. 
 

c) All Landowner proxies shall be collected at the time of registration and retained with the 
Official Records of the District for subsequent certification or verification, if required. 

 
6. Casting of Ballots 

Registration and the issuance of ballots shall cease once the Chairperson calls for the 
commencement of the casting of ballots for the election of a Board of Supervisor and thereafter no 
additional ballots shall be issued. 

The Chairperson will declare that the Landowners, or their representatives, be requested to cast 
their ballots for the Board of Supervisor(s).  Once the ballots have been cast, the Chairperson will 
call for a collection of the ballots. 

7. Counting of Ballots 

Following the collection of ballots, the Secretary or District Manager shall be responsible for the 
tabulation of ballots in order to determine the total number of votes cast for each candidate that is 
seeking election. 

The board of supervisors shall consist of three persons who, except as herein otherwise 
provided, shall hold office for a term of 3 years and until their successors are duly elected 
and qualified. 
 
8. Contesting of Election Results 

Following the election and announcement of the votes, the Chairperson shall ask the Landowners 
present, or those representatives holding proxies for Landowners, whether they wish to contest the 
election results.  If no contests are received, said election results shall thereupon be certified. 

If there is a contest, the contest must be addressed to the Chairperson and thereupon the individual 
casting a ballot that is being contested will be required to provide proof of ownership of the acreage 
for which they voted at the election within five (5) business days of the Landowners’ Meeting.  
The proof of ownership shall be submitted to the District Manager who will thereupon consult 
with the District’s General Counsel and together they will review the material provided and will 
determine the legality of the contested ballot(s).  Once the contests are resolved, the Chairperson 
shall reconvene the Landowners’ Meeting and thereupon certify the election results. 

9. Recessing of Annual Landowners’ Meeting 

In the event there is a contest of a ballot or of the election, the Landowners’ Meeting shall be 
recessed to a future time, date and location, at which time the election findings on the contest shall 
be reported in accordance with the procedure above and the newly elected Supervisor(s) shall 
thereupon take their Oath of Office. 

 

 
Page 15



 

10. Miscellaneous Provisions 

a) Each Landowner shall only be entitled to vote in person or by means of a representative 
attending in person and holding a lawful written proxy in order to cast said Landowner’s 
votes. 
 

b) Proxies will not require that proof of acreage (or lot parcel) ownership be attached.  Rather, 
proof of ownership must be provided timely by the holder of the proxy, if the proxy is 
contested in accordance with the procedure above. 

Page 16



 

 1

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

JUNE 2, 2021 
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Todd Wodraska called the June 2, 2021, Landowners’ Meeting of the Sebastian 
River Improvement District to order at 10:06 a.m. in the Indian River County Administration 
Complex, Building B-1, Room 501, 1800 27th Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
District Manager Todd Wodraska offered Proof of Publication showing that notice of the 
Landowners’ Meeting had been published in the Indian River Press Journal, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
There was a quorum established with several landowners/proxy holders: Shawn Sexton, Tom 
Hammond, Jeff Bass. 
 
Also in attendance were staff members:  District Manager Todd Wodraska of Special District 
Services, Inc.; Frank Sakuma, SDS; General Counsel Dan Harrell; District Engineer George Simons 
of Carter & Associates. 
 
D. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 
Mr. Wodraska explained the purpose of the annual landowners’ meeting and the process for the 
election.  
 
The Elections Procedures were adopted, as presented, with no objection. 
 
E. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 
 
Mr. Wodraska asked for nominations for a Chair for the Landowners’ meeting.   
 
There was a nomination for Shawn Sexton. 
 
Mr. Sexton was unanimously elected to serve as Chair for the meeting. 
 
F. ELECTION OF SECRETARY FOR LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 
 
It was recommended that Mr. Wodraska serve as the Secretary for the Landowners’ meeting.  
 
There were no objections to Mr. Wodraska being elected as the Secretary for the meeting. 
 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  June 3, 2020, Landowners’ Meeting Minutes 

Page 17



 

 2

 
The Landowners’ Meeting Minutes of June 3, 2020, were approved without objection. 
 
H. ELECTION OF SUPERVISORS 
 1.  Determine Number of Voting Units 
 
Mr. Wodraska noted that the main purpose of the Landowners’ Meeting was to elect a Supervisor to 
a three year term of the seat most recently held by Tom Hammond. 
 
1. Nomination of Candidates 
 
There were was only one nomination: 
 

 Tom Hammond 
 
2. Casting of Ballots 
 
Casting of ballots was not necessary since there was only one nomination for one seat. 
 
3. Ballot Tabulations 
 
Tom Hammond received all votes represented and was elected unopposed. 
 
4. Certifications of the Results 
 
Mr. Wodraska asked if there were any objections to the election results. There were no objections. 
 
The results of the election were certified with Tom Hammond receiving a three-year term as 
Supervisor of the Sebastian River Improvement District expiring in June 2024. 
 
I. OTHER BUSINESS 
 1.  Receive Treasurer’s Report 
 
Mr. Wodraska provided the Annual Treasurer’s Report, noting the SRID is in sound financial 
condition with a healthy fund balance. 
 
1. Receive Engineer’s Report 
 
District Engineer George Simons presented and reviewed the Annual Engineer’s Report that was 
provided via email.   
 
J. LANDOWNERS’ COMMENTS 

There were no landowner comments. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business for the Landowners’ Meeting, the meeting adjourned at 10:14 a.m.  
There were no objections 
 

Page 18



 

 3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 19



LANDOWNER PROXY 
SEBASTIAN RIVER  

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING  

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, the fee simple owner of the lands 
described herein, hereby constitutes and appoints        (“Proxy Holder”) 
for and on behalf of the undersigned, to vote as proxy at the meeting of the landowners of the Sebastian River 
Improvement District to be held on June 8, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. at the Indian River County Administration 
Complex, Bldg. A, Room A1-102, 1801 27th Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. and at any adjournments 
thereof, according to the number of acres of unplatted land and/or platted lots owned by the undersigned 
landowner which the undersigned would be entitled to vote if then personally present, upon any question, 
proposition, or resolution or any other matter or thing which may be considered at said meeting including, but 
not limited to the Board of Supervisors. Said Proxy Holder may vote in accordance with their discretion on all 
matters not known or determined at the time of solicitation of this proxy, which may be legally considered at 
said meeting. 

 
This proxy is to continue in full force and effect from the hereof until the conclusion of the above noted 
landowners’ meeting and any adjournment or adjournments thereof, but may be revoked at any time by 
written notice of such revocation presented at the annual meeting prior to the Proxy Holder exercising the 
voting rights conferred herein. 

 

 
         
Printed Name of Legal Owner 

 
              
Signature of Legal Owner       Date 

 
 

 
Parcel Description*        # of Acres   

               

             

             
 

* Insert in the space above the street address of each parcel, the legal description of each parcel, or the tax 
identification number of each parcel. [If more space is needed, identification of Parcels owned may be 
incorporated by reference to an attachment hereto.] 

 
Pursuant to section 298 Florida Statutes (2022), a fraction of an acre is treated as one (1) acre entitling the 
landowner to one vote with respect thereto. 

 
TOTAL NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED VOTES:        
 

Please note that each eligible acre of land or fraction thereof is entitled to only one vote, for example, a 
husband and wife are together entitled to only one vote per their residence if it is located on one acre or less 
of real property. 
 

If the Legal Owner is not an individual, and is instead a corporation, limited liability company, 
limited partnership or other entity, evidence that the individual signing on behalf of the entity has 
the authority to do so should be attached hereto. (e.g. bylaws, corporate resolution, etc.) 

Page 20



 
BALLOT 

 
SEBASTIAN RIVER 

 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

 
ELECTION OF BOARD SUPERVISORS 

 
JUNE 8, 2022 

 
 
The undersigned certifies that he/she is the owner (___) or duly authorized 
representative of lawful proxy of an owner (___) of land in the Sebastian River 
Improvement District, constituting             acre(s) and hereby casts up to the 
corresponding number of his/her vote(s) for the following candidate/candidates to 
hold the above-named open position: 
 
Name of Candidate Number of Votes 
 
  ___________________ 
 
  ___________________ 
 
  ___________________ 
 
____________________________________                                    ______________________ 
 
____________________________________                                    ______________________ 
 
 

 

Signature:    

Printed Name:    

 
Street Address or Tax Parcel Id Number for your Real Property:  

  

  

   

 
BALLOT #  

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30


	Sebastin River Improvement District - June 1, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Landowners' Meeting Book
	Agenda - Regular Board Meeting Book
	Proof of Publication
	April 27, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget
	Financial Update

	Agenda - Landowners' Meeting
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Adoption of Election Procedures
	June 2, 2021 Landowners’ Meeting Minutes
	Proxy
	Ballot
	Receive Treasurer’s Report
	Receive Engineer’s Report





